
68 General Assembly - Thirtieth Session - Fifth Committee 

raised concerning the ratio of support costs to programme 
costs, said that UNEP was significantly different from 
UNDP in that it was a programme and policy co-ordinating 
agency, not a funding agency, and had not been intended to 
have the capacity to finance activities. It had endeavoured 
to use funds as sparingly as possible to get its programme 
started and to secure funding for its projects from Govern
ments, other United Nations bodies and private sources. Its 
high support costs should be seen against the background of 
the total programme it generated; the programme it funded 
directly was only a small part of that total programme. 

54. Explaining the preponderance of high-level posts in 
the manning table, he said that, since UNEP did not itself 
execute projects and merely organized and co-ordinated 
programme activities with the support of other organs of 
the United Nations and the scientific and technical commu
nity, it did not require a vast infrastructure of lower level 
staff. Indeed, it was understaffed in that respect. 

55. The two years of UNEP's existence in Nairobi repre
sented its period of maximum growth. That growth rate 

should level off in the next few years so that, when the 
General Assembly, at its thirty-first session, carne to 
examine the relationship between the functions and staffmg 
of UNEP and the financial resources it required, the 
situation would be considerably more balanced. 

56. Mr. GARRIDO (Philippines) suggested that in future, 
in order to avoid confusion, the Advisory Committee 
should direct its critical comments only to items under the 
regular budget and should not deal with those financed 
from extra-budgetary sources. 

57. Mr. BEATH (New Zealand), supported by 
Mr. STUART (United Kingdom), proposed that further 
consideration of section 13 and any decision on expendi· 
ture under that section should be postponed until a future 
meeting. 

It was so decided. 

The meeting rose at 1.20 p.m. 

1712th meeting 
Monday, 130ctober 197S,at 3.15 p.m. 

Chairman: Mr. Christopher R. THOMAS (Trinidad and Tobago). 

AGENDA ITEM 103 

Appointments to fill vacancies in the membership of 
subsidiary organs of the General Assembly: 

(a) Advisory Committee on Administrative and Budgetary 
Questions (A/I 01 S I , A/C.S /1691) 

1. Mr. MAJOLI (Italy), who had been nominated for 
reappointment to the Advisory Committee on Administra
tive and Budgetary Questions (see A/C.S/1691), declared 
that, since the representative of another European country 
had come forward as a candidate for the vacancy, he would 
withdraw his own candidacy in a spirit of European 
solidarity. 

2. He thanked the Chairman of the Advisory Committee 
with whom he had had occasion to work during the past 
five years for their co-operation. 

AGENDA ITEMS 96 AND 97 

Proposed programme budget for the biennium 197 6-1977 
and medium-term plan for the period 1976-1979 (con
tinued) (for the previous documentation, see 170Sth 
meeting; A/C.S /L.l226) 

Review of the intergovernmental and expert machinery 
dealing with the formulation, review and approval of 
programmes and budgets: report of the Working Group 
on United Nations Programme and Budget Machinery 
(continued) (for the previous documentation, see 1700th 
meeting. A/C.S/L.l227) 

A/C.S/SR.1712 

General discussion (concluded) 

3. Mr. STOFOROPOULOS (Greece), referring to the 
proposed programme budget for the biennium 1976-1977 
(A/10006), joined other delegations in commending the 
Secretary-General on the many improvements he had made 
in the presentation of the document and said that the 
Secretary-General, in paragraph 3 of his foreword, had 
given a good description of the difficult task confronting 
the Fifth Committee, namely searching for solutions to the 
problem of "seeking to satisfy, within relatively restricted 
means, a wide variety of virtually unlimited needs and 
aspirations". It had been decided to try to solve that 
problem by an integrated system of planning, programming 
and budgeting. Progress towards that goal, however, was 
hampered by certain impediments. The first obstacle was a 
possible lack of co-ordination at the national level: Member 
States did not always have an integrated long-term ap
proach to United Nations problems; their national p"blicies 
might change, and the same country might adopt different 
stands in different intergovernmental bodies. Secondly, it 
was difficult to achieve a consensus between a large number 
of States because of the multiplicity of their points of view. 
It was to that difficulty that the F AO Programme Commit· 
tee had referred when it had expressed "its deep concern 
about the impossibility of incorporating national priorities 
in the defmition of regional and, even more, of world 
priorities", as Mr. Bertrand had noted in paragraph 129 of 
the report of the Joint Inspection Unit on medium-term 
planning in the United Nations system (see A/9646). 
Another obstacle was the inadequate co-ordination and 
co-operation between United Nations organizations: harmo-



1712th meetilll- 13 October 1975 69 

nization of programme budget presentation would consti· long-term solutions if, as the representative of the Nether· 
tute an important step in that direction, but it should be lands had proposed at the 1710th meeting, it could produce 
noted that international organizations appeared to be as a short factual working paper on the current financial 
solicitous of preserving their autonomy as States were. A position of the United Nations. 
further difficulty lay in the multiplicity of the departments 
which serviced the various programmes and which com· 
peted for scarce resources; that could sometimes be 
conducive to the emergence of innovative approaches. It 
was heartening, however, that the Secretary-General and his 
principal advisers were trying to prevent excessive compart· 
mentalization. 

4. The whole idea of budgeting, of allocating resources, 
presupposed a certain amount of flexibility in the distribu· 
tion of those resources. But that flexibility was limited if it 
was accepted that programmes and policies must be 
maintained from one budget period to the next and that 
units which had been created to implement them must 
necessarily continue to exist. There seemed to be a 
tendency to perpetuate units, and thereby policies and 
programmes which might have been better terminated. That 
tendency might have been reduced by a judicious realloca· 
tion of resources, in particular personnel resources, to other 
progamme goals, where appropriate. That, however, pre· 
supposed a cogent personnel policy and the means to 
implement it, which meant, inter alia, that the authority of 
the Division of Personnel Administration must be rein
forced, so that it could transfer staff from one sector of 
activity to another, and that there must be training and 
career development policies and programmes which would 
ensure the effectiveness of the new appointments. 

5. The Secretary-General had admittedly attempted to 
introduce such concepts, which were both modem and 
constructive. His delegation strongly supported those ef· 
forts, which were designed to enhance the quality of the 
Secretariat. It also unreservedly endorsed the recommen
dation of the Advisory Committee on Administrative and 
Budgetary Questions in paragraph 33 of its report (All 0008 
and Corr.2) to the effect that when posts fell vacant, the 
Secretary-General should ftll them only when that was 
required by the workload of the unit in which the vacancy 
occurred and that, in situations of declining workload, the 
vacant posts should remain unftlled and the resources 
should be reallocated to priority areas. 

6. His delegation viewed with some alarm the inexorable 
increase in the regular budget of the United Nations 
coupled with the deteriorating financial situation of the 
Organization. It was ali the more alarming in that important 
activities were not, and could not be, included in the 
proposed programme budget: for instance, the United 
Nations Peace-keeping Force in Cyprus still depended on 
voluntary contributions to discharge its task, despite the 
full co-operation it received from the host Government, the 
Government of the Republic of Cyprus. In that connexion, 
his delegation wished to thank those countries which 
contributed contingents and money to the Force. 

1. With regard to the over-all problem of the fmancial 
situation of the United Nations, a co-ordinated approach 
was required. Until a consensus on that matter had been 
reached, the specific measures suggested by the Secretary· 
General could alleviate the immediate situation. The Secre· 
tariat would facilitate the search for more general and more 

8. His delegation shared the view that the General Assem
bly should consider the medium-term plan and the proposed 
programme budget in alternate years. It also supported the 
suggestion put forward by the Turkish delegation at the 
1702nd meeting that the Secretariat should consider the 
presentation of the next biennial budget proposals in two 
formats: a concise and integrated format for the Fifth 
Committee and the General Assembly, and a detailed 
format, containing all the required information, for the 
Advisory Committee and for implementation and account
ing purposes. 

9. On the question of medium-term planning, he believed 
that the views expressed by the Joint Inspection Unit in its 
report on the subject and by ACC (A/9646/Add.l), as well 
as the comments of the Advisory Committee (A/10081) 
deserved further serious consideration. The Ad Hoc Com
mittee on the Restructuring of the Economic and Social 
Sectors of the United Nations System would certainly make 
use of those studies, as well as of the medium-term plan for 
the period 1976-1979 (A/10006/Add.l), the comments 
made thereon by CPC in the report on its fifteenth session I 
and by the Economic and Social Council at its fifty-eighth 
session, and the report of the Working Group on United 
Nations Programme and Budget Machinery (A/10117 and 
Corr.l). Those matters were dealt with in draft resolution 
A/C.S/L.1227, which had just been circulated and which its 
sponsors would no doubt wish to introduce. In that 
connexion, however, his delegation felt that it was impor
tant to avoid differentiating between interrelated recom
mendations of the Working Group, except where absolutely 
necessary. It was not, for instance, by dwelling on the 
rec~mmendation urging that CPC should have longer 
sesstons that that organ would necessarily be strengthened. 
Moreover, any recommendation by the Fifth Committee to 
the Ad Hoc Committee asking it to give favourable 
consideration to the improvement of the work of CPC 
would be incomplete if the attention of the Ad Hoc 
Committee was not at the same time drawn to the need to 
find pragmatic solutions to the financial problems arising 
from the changes recommended by the Working Group. 
The General Assembly, by its resolution 3362 (S-VII), had 
requested the Ad Hoc Committee to submit a report to it at 
its ~rty-first session, but it would take more than one year 
to nnplement, even only once, all the recommendations of 
the Working Group aimed at improving the work of CPC. 
Even if the implementation of those recommendations 
started in 1976, as was desirable, the Ad Hoc Committee 
would not be in a position, before submitting its report to 
the Assembly at its thirty-first session, to take into account 
the whole experiment. 

10. Mr. OKEYO (Kenya) felt that the presentation of the 
proposed programme budget for 1976-1977 and of the 
medium-term plan for the period 197 6-1979 showed a very 
marked improvement compared with previous documents. 
The proposed programme budget now showed the relation-

I Offu:ial Records of the Economic and Social Council, Fifty· 
eighth Session, Supplement No. 7. 



70 General Assembly - Thirtieth Session - Fifth Committee 

ship between United Nations programmes and the re
sources available for their implementation. The Fifth Com
mittee was therefore in a better position to approve the 
programmes and activities on which the limited resources of 
the United Nations would be spent. Although the synthesis 
between programmes and budget was not yet perfect, it was 
fair to say that programmes would in future reflect the 
political will of the international community. The pro
gramme budget was a more useful and rational instrument 
for Member States than the traditional budget. 

11. The appropriations requested by the Secretary-General 
amounted to approximately $737 million. His delegation 
concurred with the reductions recommended by the Ad
visory Committee, which were well reasoned and deserved 
the Committee's attention. It shared the concern of the 
Advisory Committee about increases which did not really 
appear to relate to the activities planned in the budget. The 
Advisory Committee had noted in paragraph 9 of its report 
(A/10008 and Corr.2) that the justifications provided in 
support of requests for new posts were often too vague or 
inadequate and that increased resources were often re
quested for areas which consisted only of "continuing 
activities" governed by legislative decisions taken several 
years back. A clear distinction should be made between the 
increases which related to "continuing activities" and those 
concerning non-continuing activities. The programme bud
get should be more precise than the medium-term plan and 
should provide more data on the development of organiza
tional priorities, which presupposed that the Fifth Com
mittee would be informed about obsolete programmes and 
that those programmes would be terminated. 

12. With regard to programme growth, which amounted to 
3.8 per cent, and real growth, which amounted to 3.5 per 
cent, the term "programme growth" was indeed ambiguous. 
The Advisory Committee was correct in stating that the 
increase in resources, particularly staff, would not neces
sarily involve a growth in programmes. Such growth was 
measured by the effective use of the limited resources 
available with a view to fulfilling objectives, namely, United 
Nations programmes. The Committee must therefore study 
the problem of evaluating growth before it determined the 
growth rate. 

13. The Secretary-General was requesting 826 additional 
posts, 100 of which were Arabic language posts; since staff 
costs accounted for three quarters of the United Nations 
budget, one must hope that restraint would be shown in 
future in that area. The Secretary-General tended to 
reclassify posts as a means of promoting officials. While 
that method, which resulted in a "grade creep," was 
regrettable, the Secretary-General must, nevertheless, be 
allowed a certain flexibility in that regard, at least in the 
areas where he considered reclassification to be absolutely 
necessary. His delegation therefore endorsed the recom
mendations of the Advisory Committee that all reclassifi
cations of posts to the P-4 and lower levels and the 
reclassification to D-1 of 5 out of 12 posts requested by the 
Secretary-General should be approved. Promotion questions 
should be solved in a systematic way and the International 
Civil Service Commission should study those problems and 
report to the General Assembly as soon as possible. 

14. The Secretary-General had shown restraint in the use 
of experts and consultants, since there had been a reduction 

of $129,000 in the appropriations requested under that 
item for the forthcoming biennium ($6,655,000) compared 
with the preceding budget ($6, 784,000). Such savings 
might make it possible to complete a programme in a 
developing country which otherwise might not have been 
completed. The Secretary-General should therefore con
tinue to engage experts and consultants only when the 
necessary expertise was not available in the Secretariat. 

15. His delegation had no difficulty with the fact that 
under the full budget principle the Secretary-General had 
envisaged in the budget hypothetical inflation rates, pro
vided that those rates were not too hypothetical. Perhaps 
the Committee could look into the possibility of adopting 
the principle of "semi-full" budgeting, which would enable 
the Secretariat to provide more accurate figures for 
inflation by submitting the proposed budget in two parts. 
That would, however, increase documentation and pose 
problems of timing and cost. His delegation would, in any 
case, be interested in having the opinion of the Committee 
on that matter. 

16. He shared the view of the Secretary-General (A/C.S/ 
1685) about the critical financial situation of the Organi-' 
zation. Member States should pay promptly and fully their 
assessed contributions. The cash flow situation was such 
that the United Nations might not be able to meet its basic 
obligations. His delegation would consider very seriously 
the Secretary-General's request to double the Working 
Capital Fund. Some action would have to be taken to free 
the United Nations from its current deficit of $90 million. 

17. The presentation of the medium-term plan was notice
ably better than that of the previous one. The perspective 
analysis which appeared in part one was particularly 
stimulating and provided an explanation of how the 
political and historical objectives of the United Nations 
were put into effect in specific plans and programmes. The 
fact that the plan and the proposed programme budget 
established a relation between available resources and 
programmes proved that progress was being made in the 
right direction. Programme planning was the only answer 
for a complex organization like the United Nations, since in 
most cases wise choices could be made only in the light of 
analyses submitted by the Secretariat. Priority setting was 
therefore an essential factor in understanding how the 
resources of the United Nations could be allocated in a 
rational manner to the various programmes, all of which, it 
must not be forgotten, were based on resolutions. 

18. Kenya was a member of the Working Group on United 
Nations Programme and Budget Machinery, which had 
produced a balanced report. It now devolved upon the 
Committee to study the recommendations of the Working 
Group. 

19. Mr. BELYAEV (Byelorussian Soviet Socialist 
Republic) said that he had endeavoured to determine the 
extent to which the voluminous information before the 
Committee was useful to it in performing its two tasks of 
assessing the progress made in the field of medium-term 
planning and programme budgeting and considering the 
proposed programme budget for 197 6-1977. His delegation 
was in full agreement with the view of the Chairman of the 
Advisory Committee (see A/C.S/1686) that the Fifth 



1712th meeting- 13 October 1975 71 

Committee was hardly in a position to perform the first of 
those tasks, since there was no document before it 
containing information on the experience with programme 
budgeting and medium-term planning in the United Na
tions. Although his delegation was of the view that, without 
an analysis of the results achieved in programme manage
ment and the use of resources, it was practically impossible 
to make an objective assessment of the system adopted for 
drawing up the budget, it had nevertheless tried to evaluate 
the new system of presenting the United Nations budget, 
and was by no means satisfied. 

20. In its first report2 on the proposed programme budget 
for the biennium 1974-1975, the Advisory Committee had 
stated in paragraph 18 that only the presentation of the 
proposed budget and the period covered by it had been 
changed, but that the method used to ascertain the volume 
of anticipated expenditure had scarcely been improved, 
since the concept of a modern resource management system 
had not been fully appreciated within the Secretariat; there 
was a real danger that form would become the main end 
result of the change to programme budgeting, and that the 
real advantage of the new system, namely the improved 
utilization of United Nations resources, would be lost. In its 
report (A/10008 and Corr.2) on the proposed programme 
budget for 1976-1977, which was the only document 
containing a detailed analysis of the methods used to 
prepare the plan and the programme budget, the Advisory 
Committee, in paragraphs 7 and 8, had welcomed with 
satisfaction the changes which had been made, but had not 
found the new format entirely satisfactory and had noted 
serious short-comings; it had, in particular, criticized the 
bulkiness of the proposed programme budget and the 
abundance of questionable information; for instance, in
stead of indicating in the proposed programme budget 
(A/10006, foreword, para. 14) that the proposed percent
age increase in growth requirements for the next biennium 
was lower than it had ever been since 1969, or stressing 
that, should a further upward revision of the appropriations 
for 197 4-197 5 become necessary, the percentage increase 
would be proportionately reduced (ibid., para. 28), it would 
have been more useful to remind the Committee that in the 
proposed budget for 1974-1975 the anticipated increase 
had been only 19 per cent, whereas it had actually been 37 
per cent, and that over the years the amounts on the basis 
of which those percentages were calculated were becoming 
larger. 

21. As to the methods used in the proposed programme 
budget to plan activities, calculate programme growth and 
evaluate the probable impact of inflation, they were even 
less effective and convincing than before. Consequently, the 
plans and programmes in the proposed programme budget 
had serious gaps: there were not enough details about the 
programmes, no mention was made of the duration of 
implementation, there was no evaluation of activities and 
the programmes were not related to available resources and 
to the resources, including extra-budgetary funds, needed 
to implement them. One of the most serious weaknesses of 
the new proposed programme budget was that it had not 
been calculated on the basis of programmes as a whole, 
taking into account all the elements and the changes in the 

2 Official Records of the General Assembly, Twenty-eighth 
Session, Supplement No. 8 and corrigendum. 

programmes during the previous biennium, but only on the 
basis of programme growth and the resources needed for 
that purpose. Consequently, the budget did not reflect the 
considerable savings that might be expected from the 
modification, completion or cancellation of certain pro
grammes. 

22. The most serious defect in those methods of calcula
tion was that at all levels and in all departments of rhe 
Secretariat the need to economize was completely lost sight 
of. The Secretariat was therefore not in a position to 
propose specific measures to the Committee, designed, for 
example, to make better use of personnel, to utilize 
technical resources more effectively, to call less frequently 
on outside experts or to reduce travel expenses, and there 
was no indication in any document of probable and actual 
savings. It was therefore no exaggeration to state that the 
proposed programme budget for 1976-1977 was not the 
result of the judicious application of a new system of 
planning, programming, budgeting, evaluation and control, 
as understood by the competent organs of the United 
Nations, but that the Secretariat had sought instead to 
reconcile obsolete procedures for calculating the budget 
with a new method of presentation. 

23. In the foreword to the proposed programme budget 
for 1976-1977, the Secretary-General once again cited the 
"question of adequate time and opportunity for the 
preparation of the plan and budget by the Secretariat and 
of a more logical and workable sequence for their review 
and approval at the intergovernmental and expert level" 
(ibid., para. 4). Those excuses were too simplistic. 

24. In fact, the Secretariat had not taken the necessary 
steps to implement the decision of the General Assembly to 
adopt the new system of programme budgeting; it had not 
submitted the necessary documentation to the expert and 
intergovernmental organs and it now claimed that those 
organs had not carried out their tasks. And yet, when they 
had examined the documents prepared by the Secretariat, 
the organs in question had encountered the same obstacles 
as had the Fifth Committee: excessively vague justifications 
for proposals, lack of precision in formulas, over-abundance 
of elementary tables. And yet the bureaucratic machinery 
had swallowed up everything without taking into account 
the sr ecific proposals which had been designed to improve 
the new method of programme budget presentation or the 
observations made by the Advisory Committee and the 
Fifth Committee on the first programme budget. The Fifth 
Committe.::'s main task at the current session was therefore 
to take decisions in order speedily to implement the 
resolutions of the policy-making bodies concerning the new 
system of programme budgeting, the specific proposals 
made during the general discussion and the recommenda
tions of the Advisory Committee; for instance, it should 
decide to halt programme growth for which additional 
resources were required, finance new activities by redeploy
ing available resources among programmes and by allocating 
to new activities the resources thus freed, and consider 
establishing a ceiling on programme growth. 

25. With regard to the Secretariat's claim that it had no 
time, it should be recalled that the United Nations had had 
a budget since the Organization's inception and that the 
current task was to improve the methods utilized for 



72 General Assembly - Thirtieth Session - Fifth Committee 

planning resources and implementing the approved budget. 
That was something which the Secretariat should always 
have done, particularly during the past five years. Moreover, 
two years were more than enough to devise such elemen
tary methods as those which had been utilized to calculate 
the proposed programme budget, which consisted of the 
appropriations for 1974-1975, the additional expenses for 
1975, "programme growth" and the effects of inflation. In 
that connexion, he recalled that the proposed programme 
budget for 1974-1975 had not been endorsed by many 
States Members of the United Nations, including four 
permanent members of the Security Council, because it had 
made allowance for extremely high rates of growth without 
analysing the effectiveness of ongoing programmes; that 
element of the current programme budget proposals could 
not be approved therefore without appropriate examination 
and review. Moreover, the Secretariat had not only pro
vided, in the proposed programme budget, for the continua
tion of nearly all activities currently under way but, on its 
own initiative, had provided for an increase in programmes, 
contrary to the resolutions adopted in that connexion. That 
was inadmissible. The method utilized to calculate "pro
gramme growth" and "real growth" had quite rightly been 
criticized by the Advisory Committee and by most delega
tions. 

26. His delegation was also concerned at the considerable 
sum-over $118 million-requested in the proposed budget 
to cover expenses attributable to the crisis in the monetary 
and financial system of the capitalist countries and to 
currency fluctuations, even though the General Assembly 
and most Member States had recommended that such 
expenses should be covered mainly by savings in budget 
implementation or by contributions from the developed 
countries where Secretariat units were located. 

27. The most important item of expenditure in the 
programme budget was staff costs, which accounted for 80 
per cent of the estimates. Of course, the United Nations 
budget was above all administrative but the Secretariat had 
not reached maximum productivity and was not efficient 
enough. Instead of taking radical measures to make better 
use of available personnel, it preferred to adopt the 
questionable practice of automatically increasing the 
number of staff and reclassifying posts. Thus, in the 
proposed programme budget, the Secretary-General pro
posed adding 826 new posts to the Secretariat manning 
table and reclassifying 63 posts, even though every year 
there were hundreds of vacancies in the Secretariat. His 
delegation supported the proposal that the Joint Inspection 
Unit should study the utilization of personnel in the 
Secretariat with particular reference to the nature of the 
vacancies. 

28. Finally, the proposed programme budget for 1976-
1977 contained appropriation requests which his delegation 
considered to be contrary to the Charter, namely, for the 
repayment of the United Nations bond issue. Such ex
penses were a burdensome and regrettable consequence of 
operations undertaken in the Congo and in the Middle East 
in violation of the Charter, and the States which had 
imposed those operations on the United Nations should 
bear the financial responsibility for them. As it had in the 
past, the Byelorussian delegation refused to meet those 
illegal expenses. It also considered that the inclusion in the 

regular budget of technical assistance expenses was unjus· 
tified and contrary to the spirit of Article 17 of the 
Charter; those expenses should be removed from the regular 
budget and financed by UNDP on the understanding that 
States would, as a result, increase their contribution to that 
Programme. His country would continue to pay the share 
of its contribution corresponding to technical assistance 
activities in its national currency. 

29. The representatives of the Secretariat had repeatedly 
stated that the proposed programme budget represented the 
minimum amount of resources essential to the normal 
operations of the Organization; yet out of a proposed 
budget of $737 million, the Advisory Committee had 
recommended reductions of $15 million, which the Secre
tariat had accepted, at the same time proudly emphasizing 
that that reduction represented only 2 per cent of total 
costs. If the expenses thus eliminated were unnecessary, 
one might wonder why they had been included in the 
budget and, if they were indispensable, why the Secretariat 
was giving them up without a protest. 

30. His delegation wished to assure the Committee that, in 
considering the proposed programme budget for 1976-
1977, it was concerned above all with improving the 
administrative and fmancial activities of the United Nations 
in order to increase the Organization's effectiveness as an 
instrument to strengthen international peace and security. It 
sincerely hoped that it would have nothing but praise for 
the next proposed programme budget. 

31. Mr. BOUAYAD-AGHA (Algeria) said that the major 
improvements in the over-all presentation of the budget 
made many of the sections easy to read. like the previous 
biennial budget, the budget for the coming period showed 
an upward trend in expenditure, which had increased by 
$130 million. His delegation did not feel, however, that the 
increase was to be attributed to the new method of 
presentation adopted on an experimental basis in 1972 but 
rather to the expansion of United Nations activities, which 
it would not be in the interests of Member States to 
restrict. 

32. The total of $737 million provided for in the current 
proposed programme budget was shocking to even the most 
hardened observers, particularly when one compared it with 
the $19 million spent by the United Nations in 1946. It was 
therefore important to economize, not by reducing the 
number of seminars, meetings and conferences but by 
cutting, for example, expenditure on staff, which ac· 
counted for 75 per cent of the budget. 

33. Generally speaking, it was by planning, progrl¥llJlling 
and co-ordinating United Nations activities that substantial 
reductions could be made in certain expenditures. The 
budget should therefore be based on the medium-term plan, 
thus making it possible to establish in detail the total 
resources regarded as necessary by the Secretary-General 
and to defme the type and number of goods and services in 
terms of which United Nations activities as a whole could 
be measured. 

34. However, the fact that the medium-term plan and the 
proposed programme budget were prepared the same year 
and submitted at the same session of the General Assembly 



1712th meeting- 13 October 1975 73 

presented definite disadvantages in that regard. It would be 38. With regard to inflation, the budget now set aside a 
preferable to consider the plan one year and the budget total of some $65 million to allow for its anticipated 
proposals the next year, so that the Economic and Social effects-a decision that substantially reduced the real 
Council and CPC could give the medium-term plan all the growth of the programmes proposed for 1976-1977. That 
attention that it required. so-called integrated budgeting was characterized by neither 

35. Programme budgeting was, it was true, still in its 
beginning, but the current programming methods left much 
to be desired. It was therefore essential to sift and 
assimilate the mass of data on current and future pro
grammes and, for that purpose, to strengthen the program
ming and planning functions of the legislative bodies, 
particularly the regional commissions. In practice, the 
budget was one thing and its execution, which had to be 
measured in terms of programme implementation, was 
another, and the two were not well integrated. That was a 
matter that should receive attention from the Advisory 
Committee, whose members consistently refrained from 
making judgements on programmes-perhaps out of fear of 
having to take political decisions. That attitude prompted 
his delegation to call for enlarging the Advisory Committee, 
a step that would not in any way impair its effectiveness 
and would make it possible at last to ensure an equitable 
geographical distribution of the membership by doing away 
with the so-called permanent seats and opening the way for 
the application of the principle of rotation. 

36. Increased requests for staff and inflation were the two 
curses of the programme budget, and the Secretary-General 
was aggravating that situation by padding his staff require
ments and taking as a working hypothesis rates of inflation 
which he did not apply uniformly to all elements in the 
budget. The Secretay-Genpral was calling for 826 new 
posts, which represented an increase of 4.7 per cent in staff 
over the current figure. Since senior posts made up most of 
those requested, the upward trend was continuing and 
seemed even to be accelerating before the International 
Civil Service Commission made definite arrangements re
garding careers and promotions. It was incomprehensible 
that total staff should be constantly increased even though 
many staff members were not fully employed. More 
efficient utilization of regular staff would make it a simple 
matter to dispense with consultants, some of whom were 
retired staff members who had previously not been thought 
qualified to serve as experts. It was essential to stop 
recruiting retired staff members as consultants, including in 
the regular budget, without a specific decision to that effect 
by the General Assembly, posts which had previously been 
financed from extra-budgetary funds, and requesting the 
reclassification of posts without valid reasons simply in 
order to provide promotion opportunities, as the Advisory 
Committee pointed out in paragraph 62 of its report. 
Duplication and overlapping must be eliminated, and staff 
serving in certain programmes which had now been com
pleted must be reassigned to other duties. 

37. The geographical distribution of Secretariat posts was 
not satisfactory, and there was continuing recruitment of 
nationals of overrepresented countries. He therefore for
mally requested the Secretary-General to suggest to the 
Fifth Committee a new formula for determining the 
desirable range of posts which would assign a larger 
coefficient to the "membership factor": a minimum of 2 to 
9 posts instead of the current minimum of I to 6, thus 
permitting an increase for underrepresented States. 

integrity nor proper procedure, and it had adverse effects 
on Member States, particularly the developing countries. It 
was not fair for those countries to be saddled with expenses 
attributable to inflation and monetary realignments, and it 
was the developed coWltries, particualrly those in which 
United Nations offices were located, which should meet the 
cost of inflation. He questioned whether it was reasonable 
to take the factor of inflation into account in preparing the 
budget estimates, particularly since the rate of inflation 
assumed by the Secretary-General represented only a 
working hypothesis, and he thought it unfortunate that the 
United Nations should help to import inflation into the 
developing countries. 

39. Turning to a question which was of great concern to 
his delegation, he observed that the Office of Technical 
Co-operation, which dealt with matters of strategic impor
tance to the establishment of the new international 
economic order, was theoretically responsible for the 
execution of projects but was in fact dependent for that 
purpose on various other units, i.e. technical, administrative 
and fmancial divisions of the Department of Economic and 
Social Affairs and staff recruitment and procurement units 
of the Department of Administration and Management. 
That fragmentation of responsibility greatly slowed the 
work of the Office of Technical Co-operation and did not 
make its work any easier. The Commissioner for Technical 
Co-operation should therefore be given an opportunity to 
perform in an effective manner the central role which had 
been assigned to him in 1959 and which he had never 
performed up to the current stage. The inadequate author
ity and resources of the Commissioner for Technical 
Co-operation and the Office of Technical Co-operation had 
permitted UNDP to take undesirable initiatives, to expand 
its role in defming technical co-operation policy and to 
inject itself increasingly into direct project execution 
through private research firms (employed as subcontrac
tors) without going through the specialized agencies. That 
meant in effect bilateralizing assistance, whereas Govern
ments often turned to the United Nations in order to 
obtain impartial aid with no political or commercial strings 
attached or to extricate themselves from an onerous 
bilateral arrangement. Moreover, UNDP did not have the 
means of technical supervision available to the specialized 
agencies for the purpos~;; of ensuring that a subcontractor 
was doing his job properly. Finally, the element of training 
national cadres and associating them closely with projects 
was completely missing. The Office of Technical Co-opera
tion should therefore be given the structural and material 
means it needed in order to perform more effectively. That 
would enable it to tackle without delay the tasks envisaged 
in General Assembly resolution 3362 (S-VII) without prej
udice to the more basic structural reforms which were to be 
studied by the Ad Hoc Committee set up for that purpose. 

40. Mr. BEATH (New Zealand) said that fresh impetus 
had been given to the work of the United Nations as a 
result of decisions taken at the seventh special session of 
the General Assembly. It was the task of the Fifth 



74 General Assembly - Thirtieth Session - Fifth Committee 

Committee, guided by the Advisory Committee, to recom
mend to the General Assembly the actual level of resources 
necessary in the forthcoming biennium to implement 
decisions taken by the legislative organs, bearing in mind 
the totality of programmes in the United Nations system, 
and efforts should be made wherever possible to effect 
economies. Members of the Committee should satisfy 
themselves that the proposals put before them by the 
Secretary-General had been prepared with proper regard to 
the need to make efficient use of the contributions of 
Member States, particularly since, in the current economic 
climate, the latter were being forced to trim all but the 
most essential aspects of their own programmes. As the 
Secretary-General himself had explicitly acknowledged, the 
United Nations could not escape the consequences of the 
current period of austerity. 

41. The New Zealand delegation had taken note of the 
prefatory statement by the Secretary-General in paragraph 
12 of the foreword to the proposed programme budget, in 
which he assured Member States that he had exerted his 
"best endeavours, as a matter of policy, to strike a 
reasonable balance between a justifiable expansion of 
activities of a particularly essential or important nature and 
the need for moderation and restraint ... called for in the 
prevailing economic circumstances". However, in paragraph 
33 of its report, the Advisory Committee had commented 
that it was "not convinced that those efforts have always 
been pursued with the same vigour". 

42. The Fifth Committee had been entrusted with several 
delicate and difficult tasks. In the first place, there was an 
implicit requirement imposed on the Committee to pass 
judgement on the level of real growth that should be 
considered appropriate with respect to existing pro
grammes, having regard to the current economic climate 
and the expected addition of new activities to be legislated 
at the current session. Bef0re one could properly get to 
grips with the growth question, the method of measuring 
real growth should be determined. Once the level of real 
growth had been agreed, the Committee should then 
consider how the real growth in programme activities 
should be financed. The question was whether all pro
gramme growth should be financed by the simple allocation 
of additional resources, whether growth in new programmes 
of high priority and current interest should be accom
modated by eliminating older activities of lesser interest, or 
whether it would be appropriate to combine elements of 
both approaches. Again, there was a fundamental metho
dological question, namely, whether the Secretary-General, 
in drawing up the biennial budget, should adopt an 
incremental approach (the existing practice) or the zero 
base approach. Another methodological question of con
siderable importance was whether the Secretary-General 
should adopt a full budgeting approach-in which full 
allowance was made for all inflation and currency move
mwts during the biennium-or a semi-full approach. The 
crucial issue was to determine which of those two methods 
was more likely to lead to a reduction in unnecessary 
expenditure and the promotion of efficient management. 

43. In connexion with the question of growth, the 
representative of the Federal Republic of Germany had 
pointed out at the 1701 st meeting that the fact that the 
United Nations budget dealt mainly with employees of the 

Organization told something about the meaning of budget
ary growth: it was always a question of maintaining existing 
personnel or acquiring new staff. While most delegations 
might accept as reasonable a level of over-all growth in 
activities that roughly approximated to the real growth in 
the economies of Member States, it should be borne in 
mind that growth in the United Nations system did not 
always result in growth in programme activities of direct 
benefit to Member States. That was why his delegation 
much preferred the over-all definition of programme 
growth offered by the Advisory Committee. 

44. In introducing the proposed programme budget to 
the Committee, the Secretary-General had described it (see 
A/C.5/1685) as providing "a modest measure of programme 
growth ... in critical areas". While most delegations might 
agree that the proposed over-all growth in real terms of 
between 4.5 and 6.1 per cent-depending upon one's choice 
of methodology -was not altogether unreasonable for a 
two-year period, when compared to the current perform
ance of the economies of Member States, annex III to the 
foreword of the proposed programme budget showed that 
the level of real growth varied considerably in individual 
sections of the budget. Thus, while those subsidiary organs 
of the General Assembly which were most familiar with the 
precarious financial situation of the United Nations 
-namely, the Advisory Committee, the Committee on 
Contributions, the Board of Auditors and the United 
Nations Joint Staff Pension Board-had all commendably 
restrained themselves to negative or zero-growth rates in 
real terms, some units of the Secretariat had apparently not 
been able to exercise equivalent restraint. 

45. If one looked at the figures for section 1 (Over-all 
policy-making, direction and co-ordination) in annex III, 
one would see that for the entry entitled "Secretary
General" a real increase of 8.1 per cent was proposed and 
for the Office of the Under-Secretary-General for Political 
and General Assembly Affairs a real increase of 12.5 per 
cent. On the other hand, the budget figures proposed in 
section 22, for the Office of the Under-Secretary-General 
for Administration and Management showed no increase in 
real terms. Even if it was true that the proposed over-all 
growth of between 4.5 and 6.1 per cent in real terms was 
relatively modest, one should be aware that there were very 
wide variations. Moreover, the most rapidly expanding areas 
of the budget did not necessarily correspond to what one 
might expect, prima facie, to be the most critical areas of 
United Nations activities. It appeared from annex III that 
direct development-related activities were not always fa· 
voured with high growth rates. 

46. At the 1700th meeting the representat\ve of the 
United Kingdom had very usefully drawn attention to the 
conflict in methodology used by the Secreta.ry-General to 
measure growth in expenditures in real terms in various 
parts of the programme budget. He agreed with the repre
sentative of the United Kingdom that the Secretary-General's 
methodology was seriously misleading because it conjured out 
of sight a substantial amount of real growth which ought to 
be revealed to the Fifth Committee. His delegation was 
grateful to the Advisory Committee for the thorough 
discussion of that topic contained in paragraphs 13 to 21 of 
its report, and supported those delegations which had 
expressed a preference for methodology B, explained in 



1712th meeting- 13 October 1975 75 

paragraph 18. That approach, by taking into account the 
delayed recruitment deduction factor in both biennia, most 
accurately identified the growth in expenditures expressed 
in real terms between one budget biennium and the next. 
More fundamentally, it also had the elementary virtue of 
comparing like with like. 

47. On the question of how the agreed growth in 
programme activities should be financed, he recalled that 
the Advisory Committee had pointed out in paragraph 12 
of its report, that the computation, at 1975 rates, of the 
cost of maintenance in 1976-1977 of the 1974-1975 
programmes was the foundation of the whole budget 
exercise. The Advisory Committee had again called into 
question the basic approach used in constructing the 
estimates for the forthcoming period. In his opening 
statement (A/C.S/1686) the Chairman of the Advisory 
Committee had pointed out that the Secretary-General's 
approach was based upon the concept that, in building the 
programme expenditures for the next biennium, a first step 
was to establish the resources required to maintain at rates 
prevailing at the moment of estimation the level of 
activities currently in operation. The Chairman of the 
Advisory Committee had added that while that incremental 
approach was conceptually simple and perhaps politically 
much more defensible, it nevertheless tended to discourage 
any meaningful inquiry into the utility, productivity and 
performance of ongoing activities. A number of delegations 
had commented upon that particular issue. There was no 
disagreement that older activities of lesser relevance should 
be terminated and replaced, wherever possible, by activities 
of current interest and greater priority. The question was to 
determine by what institutional means the Secretary
General could be encouraged to intensify his efforts to 
weed out obsolete activities in the Secretariat. In his 
intervention at the 1704th meeting, the representative of 
the USSR had cogently reminded the Fifth Committee of 
General Assembly resolution 2150 (XXI), approving the 
recommendations of the Ad Hoc Committee of Experts to 
Examine the Finances of the United Nations and the 
Specialized Agencies. Included in their recommendations3 
was one directing that unavoidable increases of expendi
tures caused by price increases and other reasons should be, 
as far as possible, absorbed through savings, reassessment of 
programme priorities, redistribution of resources and in
ternal budgetary adjustments. As the Austrian delegation 
had observed at the 1 707th meeting, there were limits to 
that process, though there seemed to be general agreement 
in the Advisory Committee and among delegations in the 
Fifth Committee that more could and should be done. As 
the Advisory Committee had pointed out in paragraph 34 
of its report, it was in the interest of all Member States that 
the resources of the Organization should be used as 
effectively and economically as possible. 

48. With regard to institutional changes which could 
encourage the Secretary-General to carry out a more 
rigorous assessment of programme priorities, there were 
strong arguments in favour of adopting semi-full budgeting. 
The Advisory Committee had pointed out in paragraph 32 
of its report that much of the increase built into the 

3 Ibid., Twenty-first Session, Annexes, agenda item 80, document 
A/6343, para. 40. 

proposed programme budget for 1976-1977 resulted from 
the application of the policy of full budgeting, which 
consisted in anticipating the impact of factors such as 
inflation, instead of reacting to them ex post facto through 
the submission of supplementary estimates. In view of the 
cash-flow situation of the United Nations, his delegation 
did not advocate that the Secretary-General should make 
no allowance at all for the effects of inflation and currency 
instability in the forthcoming biennium. However, there 
were serious drawbacks to the policy of allowing for such 
factors in both years of the biennium. One of the 
drawbacks of the full budgeting approach was that the 
estimates of inflation and currency movements became 
more and more uncertain. Any errors in the analysis for the 
first year of the biennium were compounded in the second 
year. 

49. His delegation did not advocate the introduction of 
semi-full budgeting simply for the sake of reducing the 
estimates of expenditure, but also because it was a good 
means of encouraging restraint and the austere management 
of scarce resources on the part of the Secretariat, provided 
of course that supplementary estimates requests were 
subject to close scrutiny. Other delegations had expressed 
views, and in some cases reservations, regarding the applica
tion of full budgeting in the United Nations system. Some 
felt that no account should be taken of the effects of 
inflation, while others believed that efforts should be made, 
using the most precise analytical means available, to predict 
and make allowance for the full effect of inflationary and 
currency movements over the full period of the biennium. 
Semi-full budgeting might therefore be described as a 
half-way house between those two extremes. 

50. The topic of semi-full budgeting was naturally linked 
to the question of the submission of supplementary 
estimates. The latter were an unavoidable phenomenon, 
whether budgeting was full or semi-full. The important 
point was that the supplementary estimates, no less than 
the regular budget estimates, must be submitted in suf
ficient time to allow Governments to give them reasonable 
consideration. At the twenty-ninth session of the General 
Assembly, the progress report of the Secretary-General on 
the programme budget for the biennium 1974-1975,4 
which had contained, inter alia, a presentation of the 
supplementary estimates, had not been made available to 
delegations until the week before the end of the session, 
and the corresponding report of the Advisory Committees 
had not been circulated to delegations until the day before 
the session was adjourned. With that experience in mind, 
his delegation noted with concern the statement in para
graph 3 of the current report of the Advisory Committee to 
the effect that the Committee's task had been considerably 
hampered by the late submission of the proposed pro
gramme budget which had become available in its entirety 
only towards the very end of the Committee's session. His 
delegation appreciated the constraints under which the 
Secretariat was operating, but felt nevertheless that greater 
efforts must be made to circulate documentation central to 
the consideration of regular and supplementary budget 
estimates at an earlier stage. 

4 Ibid.,_ Twenty-ninth Session, Supplement No. 6. 
5 Ibid., Supplement No. 8, document A/9608/ Add.l6 



76 General Assembly - Thirtieth Session - Fifth Committee 

51. He then read out a working paper which his delegation 
intended to submit to the Committee and which would be 
circulated later. 6 

52. Mr. DEBATIN (Assistant Secretary-General, Control
ler) said that he would confine himself to replying to 
comments made in the general discussion on general issues 
and would submit a paper' shortly containing answers to 
the more detailed questions. 

53. In view of the constraints imposed on the Secretariat 
by the need to reconcile theoretical concepts with the 
practical needs prescribed by the nature of the Organi
zation, to express reservations in respect of some of the 
criticisms made by delegations was not to reject their 
validity but to engage in a candid exchange of views on the 
realities of the Organization's life. · 

54. The fact ·that the budget proposals were discussed 
together with the medium-term plan raised at the very 
outset the question of how the two documents should be 
seen in relation to each other. To date no consensus had 
been reached on the purpose to be served by the medium
term plan, as distinct from the role to be played by the 
programme budget: that was not surprising, since the 
selection of programme targets was a question of choices 
and political evaluation. The medium-term plan could be 
viewed as a document fixing the over-all obJectives-in 
which case it would be for the budget to choose one possible 
action proposed to achieve those objectives and to provide 
the necessary resources-or it could be seen as an addition 
to the budget period under consideration, in which case it 
would be more of an outline of budget prospects beyond 
the current budget period. The difficulty of specifying 
objectives, which had been the subject of much discussion 
in the Committee, could be illustrated by attempting to 
describe, say, conference activities in terms of objectives. 
One had to decide whether the measurement should be the 
number of meetings, the volume of documentation pre
pared or the overriding substantive objective involved, such 
as the attainment of international agreement on the issues 
dealt with at those meetings. While the last approach was a 
vague one, it reflected the basic idea of the formulation of 
objectives in the context of medium-term planning. In 
addition to the difficulty of delineating the objective itself, 
many of the basic goals of the Organization lent themselves 
only to a very limited degree to being framed in terms of 
programme objectives. For instance, it was difficult to 
define in terms of medium-term planning the steps to be 
taken to maintain peace and security. That difficulty had 
led to some departures from the ideal of formulating 
objectives in all cases. 

55. To fix priorities was the essential task of the medium
term plan. However, in the context of the pattern of 
activities of the Organization, establishing priorities pre
sented great difficulties. Moreover, in view of the substan· 
tive choices involved, the final answer could be given only 
by the governing bodies. For that reason the Secretariat had 
taken note with particular interest of the Economic and 
Social Council's reactions to the document before the 

6 Subsequently circulated as conference room paper A/C.S/XXX/ 
CRP.J. 

7 Idem., A/C.S/XXX/CRP.4. 

Committee. However, further clarification was needed in 
order to arrive at a fum basis for the medium-term plan. 

56. Further uncertainty was created by the fact that it was 
not yet known to what extent the governing bodies 
considered a medium-term plan, once approved, as binding, 
and by the fact that the Organization's over-all plans had to 
be reconciled with those formulated at the regional level. 
The latter might have defmite justification in themselves 
but, when considered within the framework of the over-all 
programming of the Organization, they might receive a 
quite different ·rating. Desirable as the decentralization of 
planning responsibility might be, it could not be dissociated 
from the over-all responsibility of planning for the Organi
zation as a whole. 

57. As many delegations had pointed out, programme 
evaluation was an essential aspect of programme planning. 
In order to reap all the benefits of programming, a common 
understanding had to be reached on the methodology for a 
continuing evaluation of programme results. Continuing 
evaluation was equally essential in the case of the budget. 
In that connexion, he fully agreed with the Advisory 
Committee's comment that one of the most important 
tasks before the Secretariat was to base its programme 
evaluation in firm methodologies and to develop meaning" 
ful criteria for substantive judgement. If the medium-term 
plan was to serve the function originally envisaged for it, it 
had to serve as a guideline for budgeting. Accordingly, he 
was pleased to note the support expressed for the recom
mendation of the Working Group on United Nations 
Programme and Budget Machinery that the plan and the 
budget should be prepared and considered in alternate 
years. 

58. On the subject of budget presentation, he said that the 
central question was how to justify the additional require
ments that had been anticipated. In order to facilitate a 
realistic evaluation, the Secretariat had tried to differentiate 
between the elements of maintenance, growth and infla
tion. As to the growth element, the Advisory Committee's 
report (A/10008 and Corr.2) pointed out that programme 
increases should normally follow rather than precede 
action by the legislative organs, and some representatives 
had maintained that the proposed programme budget for 
the biennium 1976-1977 had been drawn up in violation of 
the rules relating to budget preparation. The Secretary
General fully realized that his budget submission could not 
propose any new programme which had not been endorsed 
first by the legislative organs involved; on the other hand, 
he had been guided by the legal authorization in para
graph 3 of General Assembly resolution 3199 (:XX\~11), 
which requested the Secretary-General "to ensure that 
there is a meaningful element of real growth in important 
programmes". Besides, it should be borne in mind that 
programme implementation could not be divorced from 
programme development, and that it was not only impracti
cable but often a waste of resources to give a programme its 
full fmancial weight at the time it was first decided upon. 
Financing had to reflect the basic experience that most 
programmes grew as they developed, without, of course, 
changing their character. Consequently, to deny the Secre
tary-General the right to request additional capacity for 
that purpose would merely jeopardize proper programme 
implementation and, since the whole field of common 



1712th meeting- 13 October 1975 77 

services constituted support for the substantive programme, 
the Secretary-General should have the authority period· 
ically to reassess real needs in those fields as well. 

59. In view of the manner in which the budget was 
administered, the presentation was a sound compromise 
between pure programme presentation and a breakdown 
reflecting the functional structure of the Organization. 
Accordingly the requirements of central management and 
conference services continued to be in separate sections, 
even though, in terms of pure programming, the costs 
should have been incorporated in the estimates for substan· 
tive programmes. However, in order to show the impact of . 
such a concept, the cost of common services had been 
apportioned to programmes for information purposes in 
annex VI to the foreword of the budget document. 
Although, at first glance, the figure of 35.7 per cent of 
expenditure attributable to common services might seem 
high, it should be borne in mind that the services involved 
constituted support for substantive programmes. In fact, 
the small increase in requirements for those services was 
attributable to conference services resulting from the need 
to service additional meetings in response to the pro· 
grammes adopted by the governing bodies. 

60. !h~ Secretariat did not believe that the budget 
subnuSSton was the best solution to the problem of 
presentation by programme; calls for improvement should, 
however, be backed by specific suggestions on alternatives. 
In that context the distinction between the so-called 
"incremental" and "zero-base" approaches to budgeting· 
had been emphasized. The incremental approach, as ex
plained by certafn· delegations, implied that the existing 
budget was taken as an unquestioned starting-point, there
by limiting decision as to what should be added in the new 
budget. Understood in that sense, the Secretary-General 
had not applied the incremental approach. He could not, 
however, follow the zero-base approach, which would have 
meant completely re-examining and justifying all require
ments from scratch, for in the real world such an approach 
was simply impossible, as the Joint Inspection Unit had 
pointed out in its report on medium-term planning in the 
United Nations system (see A/9646). While the Secretariat 
did not claim that the best balance had been achieved 
between the two methods of budgeting, it had not confined 
itself to an examination of additional requirements, on the 
assumption that the pattern of expenditure in respect of 
existing programmes was unalterable. It might, indeed, be 
true that not enough emphasis had been given to re
examining existing programmes, partly because the machin· 
ery to cope with the task of final evaluation of completed 
programmes was not yet available. Constructive proposals 
on the subject were most welcome, however, and every 
effort would be made to improve the situation. 

61. Some of the difficulty in understanding the Secre
tariat's budget approach might be due to the size of the 
budget document; two thirds of the documentation con
sisted of tables and charts which had been requested by the 
Committee itself during its discussion of the previous 
budget. While the cost of preparing, as had been suggested, 
two budget documents, one containing the full budget, the 
other a summarized version, would be prohibitive, it might 
be possible to incorporate the main figures and explanatory 
narrative in a "central" document, with all charts and 
detailed information being placed in the annexes. 

62. Referring to the comment made at the 1704th 
meeting by the representative of the Union of Soviet 
Socialist Republics to the effect that, while the increase in 
the national income of most Member States had not 
exceeded 5 to 6 per cent annually, the United Nations 
budget had risen by almost 30 per cent, he pointed out that 
the comparison was not a valid one. The magnitude of 30 
per cent, if actually reached, would reflect, not real growth, 
but growth in current money terms; moreover, it would 
relate to a biennium. In fact, the real growth as reflected in 
the initial estimates-assuming the Advisory Committee's 
figure of 6.2 per cent for the biennium, or approximately 
3.1 per cent annually-compared with increases forecast for 
1976 in gross domestic product, in terms of constant prices 
ranging from 4. 7 per cent for France and 5.9 per cent fo; 
the socialist countries of Eastern Europe to 6.4 per cent for 
the Federal Republic of Germany. The increases forecast 
for 1977 were, in most cases, higher; consequently, the 
budget submission was fully in line with the approach taken 
by the delegation of the Soviet Union. Comparisons with 
bu~g~ts o! Member States were, however, of questionable 
val1d1ty, smce the budget of the United Nations contained 
.relatively minor provision for operational programmes and 
~vestments. That was characteristic of a servicing organiza· 
bon and accoun~ed for the fact that approximately 75 per 
cent of expenditures was for salaries and common staff 
costs. 

63. Understandably, in any evaluation of United Nations 
programmes, particular attention was given to the expendi· 
ture for personnel. The proposed increases in the manning 
table had been made following careful examination, as a 
result of which the initial estimates had been substantially 
revised. Moreover, 100 of the 826 additional established 
posts related to Arabic language staff currently fmanced 
under trust fund arrangements, and 275 were posts cur
rently occupied on a temporary assistance basis, so that the 
real addition would amount to only 451 posts. With regard 
to the proposed conversion of 275 temporary assistance 
posts to established posts, he pointed out that only 29 were 
in the Professional category; 18 of those Professional posts 
and 41 of the General Service posts related to Geneva 
where, in view of the fact that there was a more continuous 
pattern of activities throughout the year, it seemed reason· 
able to propose converting to established posts staff 
previously employed on a short-term basis. Another 69 
General Service posts also related to the Geneva Office for 
which a lump sum had been included in the current 
biennium for engaging personnel to operate and maintain 
the recently completed extension to the Palais des Nations. 
When sufficient time had elapsed to make it possible to 
determine the exact number of staff permanently required 
for that purpose, it would seem proper to convert those 
posts, too, to established posts. A further group of posts 
related to ECA and again involved posts which experience 
had proved needed to be filled on a full-time basis. 

64. He agreed that extreme restraint should be observed in 
respect of proposed reclassification of posts and that that 
procedure should not be used merely for purposes of 
promotion. However, the number of proposed reclassifica· 
tions for the forthcoming biennium was considerably less 
than that for the biennium 1974-1975. With regard to the 
Advisory Committee's comments on "grade creep", he said 
that, if he had understood them correctly, there appeared 



78 General Assembly - Thirtieth Session - Fifth Committee 

to be no strong objection to the small number of 
reclassifications proposed in the lower grades. Indeed, the 
needs of proper management and career planning of staff in 
those grades required an element of. flexibility which 
should, of course, be exercised with restraint; at the same 
time, the harm resulting from undue rigidity might in the 
end outweigh any monetary gains. 

65. Strict standards had to be applied also in respect of 
reclassifications at the higher grades, but it should be 
remembered that the requirements imposed on the Secre· 
tariat by the governing bodies necessitated the recruitment 
of highly qualified specialists and that the Organization was 
competing with well-paying private and public institutions. 
Since the International Civil Service Commission would not 
be able to make any recommendations on the matter in the 
near future, it would be appreciated if the Committee 
would express its confidence in the Controller by not ruling 
out entirely the possibility of reclassification, on the 
understanding that restraint would continue to be applied. 

66. On the subject of the criticisms concerning the 
deployment of personnel, he said that the problem did not 
lend itself to easy solution, since a staff member was 
seldom engaged solely in one activity and could, on its 
completion, be reassigned immediately to another area. It 
was impossible that maximum effectiveness had not been 
achieved in the utilization of the Organization's resources. 
Indeed, that objective continued to be given high priority 
by the Secretary-General and those of his staff who were 
concerned with administration and management. Every 
effort would be made to achieve optimum utilization of 
resources. 

67. Referring to the comment made by the represen· 
tative of France at the 1 703rd meeting that expenditures 
during the biennium did not normally occur in equal parts 
in the first and second years, whereas contributions were 
assessed in equal shares, he said that to link contributions 
to the actual volume of expenditure in each of the two 
years would vitiate the essential concept of the biennial 
programme budget. Moreover, practice had been followed 
in the first programme budget document and had been 
disapproved of by the Advisory Committee. Of course, 
careful calculations still had to be made to ascertain the 
flow of actual expenditures in the two years in order to 
determine the effects of inflation as precisely as possible. 
Naturally, the 10.9 per cent increase in the budget 
estimates attributable to inflation could not but be viewed 
with concern, and although every effort would be made to 
absorb additional expenditures due to inflation, there were 
limits to what could be done. The Organization could not 
be expected to perform increasingly important tasks and 
accept new responsibilities without the necessary fmancial 
support or without some allowance for the effects of 
inflation. Given that the concept of programme budgeting 
had been accepted, it had to be recognized that the 
consequence of a refusal to provide resources to cope with 
inflated prices would be a reduction in the effective 
performance of programmes; by so acting, governing bodies 
would be contradicting the decisions they had already 
taken. 

68. Several delegations had asked whether there would be 
some merit in having the impact of inflation for the second 
year removed from the estimates and made subject to a 

later decision. He was apprehensive about the consequences 
of such a procedure. After achieving the benefit of full-scale 
budget discussions at two-year intervals, the Committee 
would again be faced with budgetary discussions every year. 
While that did not seem too much of a problem at first 
glance, in practice it would mean reverting to annual 
calculations and isolating what had been spent in the first 
year from the requirements of the second year in order to 
justify the additional resources needed to offset the impact 
of inflation in the second year. While he fully agreed that 
there had to be strict control to ensure that no unjustified 
use was made of resources originally designed to offset the 
impact of inflation, that control was already assured by the 
Organization's internal procedures and by the Secretariat's 
obligation to provide performance reports containing de
tailed information on the pattern of expenditure and the 
impact of inflation on actual spending. 

69. Mr. SAFRONCHUK (Union of Soviet Socialist Re· 
publics) replied to the Controller, who had questioned the 
soundness of the approach taken by the Soviet delegation 
when, in criticizing the high rate of growth of the United 
Nations budget, it had made reference to the fact that the 
gross national product, expressed in terms of constant 
prices, grew at a rate several times lower. He emphasized 
that his delegation had wished to point out that, since 
Member States paid their contributions to the United 
Nations hudget on the basis of their real resources, whose 
volume was determined by their national income and gross 
national product, they could not fail tc be disturbed by the 
fact that the United Nations budget was growing at a rate 
several times higher than the rate of growth of the resources 
which Member States could make available to the Organi· 
zation. The national product and national income of the 
socialist countries were produced by workers and peasants 
who had the right to ask why they should have to pay to 
compensate for the effects of an inflation in capitalist 
countries for which they were in no way responsible. At the 
same time, the Controller had tried to compare the growth 
of national income and of the gross national product with 
the "real growth" of United Nations programmes. Those 
elements, however, were not at all comparable. The budget 
of the United Nations served only to pay for administrative 
expenditures and the salaries of personnel. Administrative 
activity, as was well known, created no material product, and 
expenditure connected with such activity was not included 
in the gross national product and the national income; on 
the contrary, it was unproductive expenditure, covered at 
the expense of national income. Such a comparison was 
therefore erroneous and arbitrary. It was however valid to 
take into account the rate of growth of the national income 
of States, expressed in terms of constant prices, in the 
preparation of the United Nations budget, because that 
budget could not grow faster than the real resources of 
Member States and the proportion of those resources which 
they would be able to devote to the Organization. 

70. The CHAIRMAN said that the three-weeks general 
discussion on the proposed programme budget for the 
biennium 1976-1977, the medium-term plan for the period 
1976-1979 and the review of the intergovernmental and 
expert machinery dealing with the formulation, review and 
approval of programmes and budgets had highlighted many 
new issues and revived many concerns and questions with 
which the members of the Committee and the Organization 



1712th meeting- 13 October 1975 79 

as a whole had been dealing for some time. The discussion 
had indicated that there was over-all acceptance of and 
satisfaction with the policy of programme budgeting in 
itself. Nevertheless, views had varied as to the details of its 
formulation and content, particularly with regard to the 
issues of full budgeting, programme analysis and pro
gramme growth, the establishment of priorities in formula
tion and content, the use of voluntary funds for programme 
support and the phenomenon of "grade creep." 

71. A number of suggestions and proposals had been made 
as to how the programme budget might be better adjusted 
to fit the changing needs of the Organization. One of the 
proposals concerned the over-all elaboration of programmes 
as regards their content and thrust. In that connexion, it 
seemed that most Members favoured a greater role for CPC 
in interpreting, formulating and co-ordinating programmes. 
It had even been suggested that the role of the CPC in re
spect of programmes should be similar to that of the Advisory 
Committee in respect of budget examination. Most Mem
bers had recognized the necessity of giving greater perspec
tive to programme budgeting. There also seemed to be 
unanimous support for a staggered time-table whereby the 
medium-term plan and the programme budget would be 
considered in alternate years, an idea which had been 
incorporated into draft resolution A/C.5 /L.I227. 

72. With regard to the proposed programme budget, there 
were three main areas of attention. The first was measure
ment of programme growth. There seemed to be some 
dissatisfaction with the methodology used by the Secre
tary-General in evaluating real growth, and many represen
tatives seemed to have preferred the alternative method
ology proposed by the Advisory Committee which sought 
to identify the amount of growth and expenditure in real 
telllis. In that connexion, the question of the desirability of 
target programme growth had also been raised and a 
proposed ceiling for over-all programme growth had been 
advocated. 

73. The second area of attention was inflation. The 
majority of delegations seemed to feel that inflation had to 
be considered as a reality in budget formulation, although 
they had not given any clear indications as to how that 
should be done. A proposal by the Philippines delegation 
(A/C.5/L1226) on that matter was before the Committee. 
The Secretary-General's projected inflationary component 
in the programme budget for the biennium 1976-1977 had 
been described as no more than a working hypothesis, and 
it would seem that many delegations would have preferred 

a more standardized mechanism, based on clearly defined 
criteria. 

74. The third area was the utility value of existing 
programmes. There seemed to be general agreement that it 
would be advantageous to examine such programmes to 
determine which programmes were of only marginal utility 
and thus might be phased out and which others might be 
streamlined and redefined consistent with more up-to·date 
objectives. In that regard, the role of CPC might be directly 
relevant to the future work of the Fifth Committee. 

75. In his statement to the Committee at its 1700th 
meeting (A/C.S/1685), the Secretary-General had referred 
to the question of the need to increase the Working Capital 
Fund of the Organization. Various delegations had ex
pressed their views on that question and some difference of 
opinion had arisen. New views on that question would no 
doubt emerge after the Committee received the clarifica
tions to be contained in the working paper it had requested 
from the Secretariat. 

76. Unfortunately, owing to a lack of time, the Com
mittee had not been able to discuss adequately the 
medium-term plan, the broader question of medium-term 
planning in the United Nations system or the report of the 
Working Group on United Nations Programme and Budget 
Machinery. If, however, concrete proposals emerged out of 
the general discussion on the focal points he had just 
outlined, the medium-term plan itself would be given fuller 
treatment in future sessions of the Committee. 

77. Having heard the statement made by the Controller, 
the Committee would no doubt want to give further 
consideration to certain questions before making other 
concrete proposals. He was sure the representative of the 
Philippines would agree to have consideration of his 
proposal deferred until such time as other proposals had 
been made, so that all interrelated proposals could be 
considered together. 

78. Mr. TALIEH (Iran) said that his delegation had still 
not received a reply to its request for information regarding 
the geographical distribution of Secretariat posts occupied 
by nationals from developing countries. 

79. The CHAIRMAN assured the representative of Iran 
that the Secretariat had duly taken note of his request and 
that the desired information would be provided shortly. 

The meeting rose at 6.20 p.m 


